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TO OUR SUPPLIERS/VENDORS/CONTRACTORS:  In order to provide you with the best customer service possible, this guide is published to answer your questions concerning Government procurement.  If you think of any other questions you would like answered, we encourage you to mail them to Directorate of Contracting, ATTN:  Customer Service Representative, 45 West Street, Fort Drum, NY 13602-5220, fax to (315) 772-7473, or e-mail to drum.doc@conus.army.mil.
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QUESTION 1:  HOW DO I GET STARTED AS A CONTRACTOR AT FORT DRUM?

[image: image5.wmf]
ANSWER:  If you have Internet access, we suggest you browse our Homepage at http://www.drum.army.mil (click on Business/Contracting).  It contains important customer service information.  Examples:  solicitations, current contracts, Purchase Cardholder’s List, and “HOT” news items.  If you do not have Internet access or if you have any questions that are not addressed in this Customer Service Guide, you are encouraged to call 315-772-6508 or fax 315-772-7473. 

QUESTION 2:  I NEED PROFESSIONAL ASSISTANCE TO BECOME A SUCCESSFUL CONTRACTOR WITH THE GOVERNMENT.  WHAT IS THE BEST RESOURCE?

ANSWER:  The Rochester Procurement Technical Assistance Center (PTAC) provides free government contract consulting to diverse business concerns.  It’s services include:  outreach for prime contractors, exploring appropriate small business certifications, researching procurement opportunities, facilitating contact with contracting offices, post award compliance, assessing company’s readiness for participating in Federal government contracts, and bid matching.  For more information visit their website at http://www.rochesterptac.com or contact Paulette Birch, telephone: 585-256-4620, e-mail: paulette.birch@RBAAlliance.com.

QUESTION 3:  WHAT IS CENTRAL CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION?

ANSWER:  The Federal government implemented a policy whereby all contractors/vendors who wish to do business with any Federal agency (including Fort Drum) must utilize the Central Contractor Registration (CCR).  The CCR is a single repository for contractor data and updated annually by registrants.  If you do not register in CCR, you will not receive a contract award from any Federal agency.  ALSO, it is mandatory that you update the CCR information at least once every 365 days.  If you do not, your company information will be removed from the CCR database.  

QUESTION 4:  HOW DO I APPLY FOR CENTRAL CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION?

ANSWER:  To register in the CCR, you may use any one of the following methods:  (1) mail completed registration application to the following address:  Central Contractor Registration Assistance Center, 74 Washington Street, Suite 7, Battle Creek, MI  49017-3084; (2) register directly with CCR through interactive World Wide Web application at http://www.ccr.gov; or (3) visit our office at 45 West Street to utilize our computer for on-line registration.  If you intend to register by mail, you may obtain a registration application by calling 1-888-227-2423 or 269-961-7766 (CCR Assistance Center).  You must obtain a Data Universal Numbering 
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System (DUNS) number in order to complete your CCR.  The DUNS number is a unique 9-character identification number provided by Dun & Bradstreet.  This can be obtained simply by calling 1-866-705-5711 or 610-882-7000 or by direct application at http://www.dnb.com/us/.
QUESTION 5:  HOW WILL I KNOW MY REGISTRATION WAS SUCCESSFUL?

ANSWER:   Via the Internet, you will be unable to submit your registration on-line unless all of the mandatory information is provided.  You will be notified of missing information by a list of “errors” when you click on “Validate/Save”.  Once you have provided the information, click “Validate/Save” again to verify that all necessary fields are filled.  Via fax/mail, if your registration is missing information, you will receive a letter that includes a copy of your registration and a list of the missing data.  It is your responsibility to provide any missing data back to the CCR Assistance Center so that your registration can be completed.  If your registration was submitted successfully, then you will receive two letters via U.S. mail.  The first letter is to welcome you to CCR and will include a copy of your registration.  The second letter contains your confidential Trading Partner Identification Number (TPIN).  The TPIN is sent separately for security reasons.  Receipt of your TPIN not only confirms that you are successfully registered in CCR, it is required to make or request any changes or updates to your active registration.  The TPIN is your confidential password to change your CCR information.  The TPIN is not to be used on contracts or other Government paperwork.

QUESTION 6:  HOW DO I VERIFY THE STATUS OF MY REGISTRATION?

[image: image6.wmf]ANSWER:   Visit CCR’s homepage at http://www.ccr.gov and click on  “Search CCR”.  When prompted, enter your DUNS number and click “Search”.  The registration status is located at the top of the page in RED.  You may also confirm your registration by calling the CCR Assistance Center at 1-888-227-2423 or 269-961-7766.  The Interactive Voice Response (IVR) System for CCR Status allows a calling party to check the status of their CCR status based on entry of a DUNS number.  Call 1-888-352-9333 and select CCR from the Menu (Option 3).

QUESTION 7:  HOW DO I RENEW, CHANGE, OR CANCEL AN ACTIVE REGISTRATION?

ANSWER:  The Internet is the recommended option for making changes or renewing your registration.  Changes can be made by going to CCR’s homepage at http://www.ccr.gov and clicking on “Active Registrations, Renew or Update”.  Enter your DUNS number and TPIN, click “Submit”.  Make the necessary changes then click “Validate/Save” button for an update to register in the system.  To submit a renewal with no changes, follow the same steps listed above with the exception of making changes to your information.  Reminder:  you must click “Validate/Save” to activate the renewal, even if none of your information has 
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changed.  To change or renew registration by mail or fax send your DUNS number, your TPIN number, company name and changes (if necessary) to CCR Assistance Center, 74 Washington Street, Suite 7, Battle Creek, MI 49017-3084 or fax 616-961-7243 for update.  There are two ways to cancel an active registration:  (1) go to http://www.ccr.gov, click on “Update My Registration”, enter your DUNS number and TPIN and click “Delete Profile; or (2) contact the CCR Assistance Center at 1-888-227-2423 or 269-961-7766.  REMEMBER:  You must renew your registration at least once a year.  If you do not renew your registration, it will expire.  An expired registration will affect your ability to conduct business with the Department of Defense.  It will also affect any outstanding invoices being processed by the Defense Finance and Accounting Service.  (That is, you will not receive payment until your registration is current.)         

QUESTION 8:  ONCE I HAVE BEEN REGISTERED IN THE CENTRAL CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION (CCR), WILL I AUTOMATICALLY RECEIVE SOLICITATIONS FOR MY PRODUCTS/SERVICES?

ANSWER:  Input of your company’s information into the vendor database through the CCR does NOT automatically insure that you will be sent a solicitation for your services/supplies.   It is the vendor’s responsibility to search the various Internet sites (including Fort Drum’s Directorate of Contracting Homepage) for upcoming Government procurements.  (See Appendix A for a quick reference of Internet addresses and contacts discussed in this guide.)

QUESTION 9:  DO YOU MAINTAIN BIDDER’S MAILING LISTS?

ANSWER:  This office does not collect this information; however, information on prime contractors and subcontractors interested in a particular solicitation is collected on the Federal Business Opportunities website (http://www.fedbizopps.gov).  Subcontractors can also search SUB-Net at http://web.sba.gov/subnet for subcontracting opportunities that prime contractors have posted.  

QUESTION 10:  HOW DO I OBTAIN INFORMATION ON A PREVIOUS OR CURRENT CONTRACT?
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ANSWER:  You can obtain information on any of our contracts by submitting a request under the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA).  You must specify what information you are requesting (i.e., bid schedule, wage rates, payrolls, etc.) and to find the information you are requesting.  Always include a point of contact at your firm.  Submit your request to the FOIA Officer at Directorate of Information Management, ATTN:  FOIA Officer, Building P-10690, Fort Drum, NY 13602.  A fee will usually be charged to provide this information to you.
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QUESTION 11:  I HAVE HEARD THAT FORT DRUM IS A “CLOSED” POST.  WHAT DOES THIS MEAN?

ANSWER:  It means that all vehicles entering the installation will be checked at Fort Drum’s gates.  Any vehicle operator must present a current driver’s license, proof of insurance, and valid vehicle registration.  Visitors/contractors/vendors requiring access to Fort Drum must complete a Contractor Access Form, which will be provided by their Government point of contact (sponsor).  This form consists of the name of the firm (if applicable), the individual’s name, Social Security Number, date of birth, and signature of applicant.  Also, the length of time the contractor needs access must be provided to their Government point of contact.  This information along with the Contractor Access Form will be passed on to the Directorate of Contracting and will include an impact statement that explains the reason the individual needs access to Fort Drum.  All of this information must be provided to the Directorate of Contracting by 2:00 PM on the day prior to when access to Fort Drum is required.  The visitor/contractor/vendor will be placed on the Contractor Access List that is provided to the Fort Drum gates.  All commercial and non-commercial vehicles that do not have a Department of Defense vehicle registration sticker and/or drivers and passengers without Government identification must enter through the following gates:  Oneida Avenue off Route 26 or North Memorial Drive off NYS Route 11.  The Directorate of Contracting’s point of contact for gate access may be contacted at (315) 772-9893.

QUESTION 12:  I HAVE BEEN HEARING A LOT ABOUT FORT DRUM USING PURCHASE (CREDIT) CARDS TO MAKE ITS PURCHASES.  WHAT IS THIS PROGRAM ALL ABOUT?

[image: image8.wmf]ANSWER:  The Directorate of Contracting has adopted the Government Purchase Card Program for all “micropurchases”.  Micropurchases include supplies and subsistence procurements at or below $3,000, services at or below $2,500 and construction projects at or below $2,000.  Individuals on the Fort Drum installation and in other areas supported by Fort Drum have been appointed as “buyers” for these purchases and have been issued VISA credit cards.  This means that if an activity has a requirement to make these types of purchases, he/she will either place a phone call to the vendor of his/her choice or visit the vendor’s place of business to order the item(s).  The vendor will be asked if he accepts a VISA purchase card.  If not, the buyer may go elsewhere to make his/her purchase.  More information on this program can be obtained from the Directorate of Contracting by calling (315) 772-6508.  
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QUESTION 13:  MAY I PERFORM A DEMONSTRATION OF MY PRODUCT OR SERVICE FOR POTENTIAL CUSTOMERS AT FORT DRUM?

ANSWER:  Yes, but you MUST contact the Customer Service Representative at (315) 772-6508 to obtain permission and to set up an appointment with the personnel most likely to use your product or service.   Please be aware that a demonstration is not a guarantee to purchase your product or service, and the Government is not liable for loss or damage occurring during the demonstration.

[image: image9.wmf]QUESTION 14:  HOW DO I SELL MY OFFICE PRODUCTS TO FORT DRUM?

ANSWER:  In accordance with the Javits-Wagner-O-Day (JWOD) Act, federal agencies are required to purchase office products from AbilityOne participating nonprofit agencies that employ people who are blind or severely handicapped.  Fort Drum and LC Industries, a nonprofit AbilityOne participating agency, formed a partnership and set up a Self Service Supply Center at Fort Drum for the purpose of providing office products to Fort Drum customers.  Other vendors who wish to sell their office products to Fort Drum must contact LC Industries (see Appendix A for contact information).

QUESTION 15:  WHAT IS FEDBID?

ANSWER:  FedBid is a buyer-driven online marketplace to compete purchases of commodities such as computer hardware, software, electronics, office items, industrial equipment, automotive equipment, furniture, facilities equipment, and various miscellaneous supplies.  FedBid is being utilized by many federal organizations and corporations to purchase various commodities using a dynamic reverse auction approach.  This means their website functions like a reverse eBay system, with sellers bidding on the Government’s needs, but offering lower prices in hope of being the lowest, best vallue bidder.  Fort Drum Directorate of Contracting is currently participating in the FedBid process during a pilot program established between the Army Contracting Agency Northern Region and FedBid.  Small business set-aside competitions are being successfully utilized during the process.  Various companies, including those with GSA contracts, agency specific multiple award contracts, and all types of businesses, large and small, can be registered with FedBid.  In order to register with FedBid or find more information about this program, visit the FedBid website at www.FedBid.com.  Registration is free and FedBid will assist companies in completing the registration process and understanding the terms, conditions, and fees involved in providing bids thorugh the reverse auction procedure.
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QUESTION 16:  IS IT TRUE THAT THERE ARE FEWER PRIME CONTRACTING OPPORTUNITIES AT FORT DRUM?  

ANSWER:  Yes, it is true.  The trend in Government contracting, including Fort Drum, is to award fewer prime contracts utilizing “master” contracts, such as Job Order Contract, Maintenance, Repair & Rehabilitation Contract, Blanket Purchase Agreements, Blanket Purchase Orders, and regionalized/consolidated contracts.  The goal is to eliminate redundancies and leverage Army-wide requirements through “economies of scale” buying to reduce lead times and costs.  

QUESTION 17:  WHERE DO I FIND INFORMATION ON SUBCONTRACTING OPPORTUNITIES AT FORT DRUM?  

[image: image10.jpg]


ANSWER:  Check our Homepage for “Current Contracts” where you will find a listing of our current contracts with names, addresses, and phone numbers of the prime contractors.  As an example, Fort Drum has two contracts in place until June 2007 for its Maintenance, Repair, and Rehabilitation (MRR) requirements with a combined estimated value of $110 million.  The work ordered under these contracts is somewhat more complex than what is ordered under JOC and includes more complex/technical design requirements.  Task orders will include, but are not limited to, the following types of work:  work plans, construction and maintenance, repair and rehabilitation services on Fort Drum.  You may contact Lawman Heating & Cooling, Inc. or Purcell Construction Corporation for subcontracting opportunities (see Appendix A of this guide or our Homepage for “Current Contracts”).  Upon expiration of these two MRR contracts, Fort Drum’s requirements for Repair, Rehabilitation and Construction (RRC) services will be provided under two recently awarded contracts with an estimated value of $200 million each.  You may contact Chugach Industries or Alutiiq Global Solutions, LLC for subcontracting opportunities (see Appendix A of this guide or our Homepage for “Current Contracts”).  

QUESTION 18:  I HAVE HEARD ABOUT A “JOB ORDER CONTRACT” AT FORT DRUM.  WHAT IS IT AND HOW CAN I BECOME A CONTRACTOR?

ANSWER:  The latest “job order contract” for construction requirements was awarded in March 2004 with an estimated value of $50 million.  It contains hundreds of line items of many different types of construction work (i.e., electrical, sheetrock, painting, wallpapering, flooring, earthwork, environmental, plumbing/HVAC, and general construction).  Whenever the Government determines that it has a construction requirement that can be performed under this contract, it negotiates a task order with the prime contractor who, in turn, may or may not subcontract the work.  The current JOC prime contractor subcontracts approximately 70% of their task orders.  For information on how to participate in this contract, contact this office at (315) 772-5443 or call Cadence Contract Services LLC at (315) 775-9926 (see Appendix A for more information on this contractor).  
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QUESTION 19:  I HAVE HEARD ABOUT CONSTRUCTION OF NEW HOUSING UNITS ON FORT DRUM.  HOW CAN I BECOME A CONTRACTOR?

ANSWER:  What you heard about is the Residential Communities Initiative (RCI).  Actus Lend Lease has been chosen by the Army as its RCI partner.  As the partner, they will construct, renovate and operate housing at Fort Drum for the next 50 years.  Actus Lend Lease is currently constructing new homes on-post and renovating all of the existing homes.  This is a tremendous opportunity for businesses and entrepreneurs.  Businesses interested in contracting with Actus Lend Lease must submit a Subcontractor/Supplier Pre-Qualification Form.  For more information and application forms, visit their website at http://www.fortdrummch.com.  Their mailing address is PO Box 146, Black River, NY 13612; telephone: (315) 955-6010.
QUESTION 20:  IS THE DIRECTORATE OF CONTRACTING THE ONLY PROCURING AGENCY FOR CONSTRUCTION OR SERVICE CONTRACTS PERFORMED ON FORT DRUM?

ANSWER:  No.  Certain construction projects are approved and funded by Congress under Military Construction Appropriations Acts; these projects are procured by the Army Corps of Engineers.  The Corps of Engineers has an office on Fort Drum and may be contacted at (315) 772-6313.  Also, some service contracts may be procured by the Army Contracting Agency at Fort Monroe, Virginia utilizing regionalized solicitations.  An example of a regionalized procurement is the contract for guard services at Fort Drum.  Procurement notices for these projects will be published on the FedBizOpps and/or the ASFI website.

QUESTION 21:  WHERE DO I FIND INFORMATION ON SUBCONTRACTING OPPORTUNITIES AT OTHER GOVERNMENT AGENCIES?

ANSWER:  If you are interested in subcontracting opportunities, ask specific agencies for lists of their prime contractors.  For example, GSA publishes the “GSA Subcontracting Directory”; the DoD publishes “Subcontracting Opportunities with DoD”; and the SBA offers the “Subcontracting Directory”, which lists numerous prime contractors for multiple agencies, through the SBA Government Contracting Home Page.  Contact the SBA Government Commercial Market Representative (CMR) in your area for a copy of the prime contractors in New England, New Jersey, and New York.  (NOTE:  The SBA CMR in Fort Drum’s area is Joyce Spears, email: joyce.spears@sba.gov; phone 585-263-6700.)
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QUESTION 22:  HOW DO I OBTAIN A GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION (GSA) SCHEDULE CONTRACT?

ANSWER:  You are encouraged to browse GSA’s website at http://www.gsa.gov.  This site is very comprehensive and contains all sorts of information on GSA and how to become a GSA vendor.  GSA also offers free workshops on “How to Obtain a GSA Schedule Contract”.  Check with your regional GSA Small Business Utilization Center for more information.  The regional point of contact for New York is John Clario, 26 Federal Plaza, New York, NY 10278-0000, phone: 212-264-1236/1234, fax: 212-264-2760, email: rz.sbuc@gsa.gov.
QUESTION 23:  HOW DO I BECOME A SUPPLIER TO THE DEFENSE COMMISSARY AGENCY (DeCA)?

ANSWER:  You may contact one of their small business specialists, a regional buyer, your local commissary officer (at Fort Drum), or their small business office.  Website is http://www.commissaries.com/business.cfm.  (See Appendix A for local contact info)

QUESTION 24:  HOW DO I CONTACT OTHER AGENCIES TO SELL THEM MY PRODUCTS/SERVICES?

ANSWER:  You can access the FedBizOpps website at http://www.fedbizopps.gov or the Army Single Face to Industry (ASFI) website at https://acquisition.army.mil/asfi for information on procurement opportunities with other agencies.  You can also search the various websites listed at Appendix A.

QUESTION 25:  WHAT IS THE NONAPPROPRIATED FUND (NAF) PROCUREMENT OFFICE?  HOW DO I CONTACT THEM?  

ANSWER:  The NAF Procurement Office is independent of the Directorate of Contracting and supports the following NAF activities:  Installation Club System (food, equipment, entertainment, and vending and amusement machines); Community Recreation Division (supplies and equipment for bowling center, physical fitness center, outdoor recreation, arts and crafts, automotive shop, etc.); Veterinary Clinic (medical supplies and equipment); Army Community Services (supplies and equipment); and Billeting (uniforms, linens, small appliances, and furniture).  For purchases up to $5,000 for supplies and up to $2,500 for services, NAF purchase cardholders are authorized to make the purchases.  For purchases over these amounts, the NAF Procurement Office will generally issue a Request for 
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Quotation to vendors selected from their vendor database.  The point of contact is Chan Kim, located at NERO NAF Contracting Office, 101 Bloxon Street, Building 205, Room 213, Fort Myer, VA 22211, telephone: 703-696-7129, fax: 703-696-4835/3064, email: chan.k.kim@fmmc.army.mil.  For more information on how to do business with NAF Procurement, visit their website at http://www.armymwr.org/contracting.  (NOTE:  The Navy, Air Force and Coast Guard also have NAF Procurement Offices.)

QUESTION 26:  WHAT IS THE BEST WAY TO ENSURE THAT I RECEIVE SOLICITATIONS FOR MY PRODUCTS/SERVICES?

[image: image11.wmf]ANSWER:  The Directorate of Contracting posts all procurement advertisements (including requirements under $25,000) on its Homepage.  Also, all Federal procurement offices are required to announce proposed procurement actions over $25,000 on General Services Administration’s (GSA) Federal Business Opportunities (FedBizOpps) website.  FedBizOpps is accessible at http://www.fedbizopps.gov.

QUESTION 27:  DOES FORT DRUM ADVERTISE THEIR REQUIREMENTS WITH AGENCIES OTHER THAN GSA’S FEDERAL BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES (FEDBIZOPPS)?

ANSWER:  We post the FedBizOpps announcement on our Homepage.  Once the solicitation is actually issued to the public, it is posted on our Homepage and on the Army Single Face to Industry (ASFI) website at https://acquisition.army.mil/asfi.  The ASFI website contains information on procurement actions throughout the Army as well as links to many other valuable websites.  Your local Builder’s Exchange may also have information regarding our construction procurement actions.

QUESTION 28:  AT TIMES I CANNOT ACCESS YOUR HOMEPAGE.  WHAT IS THE PROBLEM? 

ANSWER:  If you are unable to access our Homepage, log off and try again in a few minutes.  Most of the time the problem is due to heavy traffic on our Homepage.  Other times the problem is due to Homepage maintenance, power outages, and sometimes your network provider.  If the problem persists, please call our office at 315-772-5441.
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QUESTION 29:  IN WHAT FORMAT DOES FORT DRUM ISSUE ITS SOLICITATIONS?

ANSWER:  Our solicitations are issued in an electronic format on the Internet.  Instructions to download solicitations from the Internet are at Appendix B.

QUESTION 30:  HOW CAN I TELL WHEN THE SOLICITATION IS ACTUALLY ISSUED BY YOUR OFFICE AND READY FOR DOWNLOADING FROM YOUR HOMEPAGE?

[image: image12.wmf]ANSWER:  When the solicitation is issued, the statement “Available Now” will appear above the solicitation number on our Homepage.  Do not rely on solicitation issue dates published by the Builder’s Exchanges.  All they have been given is an “on or about” (O/A) issue date.  You should continually check our Homepage to determine if the solicitation has been issued.

QUESTION 31:  HOW ARE AMENDMENTS TO AN ELECTRONIC SOLICITATION ISSUED?

ANSWER:  Amendments are issued in the same manner as the solicitation and are posted on our Homepage.  Go to the solicitations download page.  The amendment will be listed by its number (e.g., Amend 0001, etc.) in the solicitation section list.  In the “amendment column”, a little red ball will appear signifying an amendment has been issued.  NOTE:  IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF BIDDERS/OFFERORS TO CHECK OUR HOMEPAGE FOR AMENDMENTS TO SOLICITATIONS.  YOU WILL NOT BE NOTIFIED BY THIS OFFICE.

QUESTION 32:  HOW CAN I GET THE DRAWINGS PRINTED OUT TO “FULL SCALE”?

ANSWER:  Obviously, it is not possible to do this from your computer.  It is your responsibility to have them enlarged.  You can check with your local Builder’s Exchanges to see if they can/will print the drawings full scale or recommend someone who can.

QUESTION 33:  CAN BIDDERS OBTAIN RESULTS OF THE BID OPENING PRIOR TO AWARD OF THE CONTRACT?

ANSWER:  Yes.  All Invitations for Bids (IFBs) are opened publicly at the Directorate of Contracting and bidders are welcome to attend the bid opening.  If you have Internet access, you may connect to our Homepage for information on the 3 lowest bidders.  This information will be posted the next business day after the bid opening.  You also may call the Directorate of Contracting for bid results at (315) 772-6510.  The entire  “Abstract of Offers” is available only by mail.  NOTE:  Requests for Proposals (RFPs) and Requests for Quotations (RFQs) are not publicly opened; therefore, “abstracts” for these types of solicitations are not available to the public.)  
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QUESTION 34:  HOW DO I SUBMIT COMMENTS ABOUT THE CUSTOMER SERVICE THAT I RECEIVED FROM YOUR OFFICE?

[image: image13.wmf]ANSWER:   Fort Drum utilizes an Interactive Customer Evaluation program that is a web-based customer feedback system addressing concerns in Installation service.  Go to http://ice.disa.mil.  Click on “Fort Drum” then select “Acquisition” from the category list.  Click on the info column to see service provider information such as hours of operation, phone numbers, and upcoming events.  Click on the service provider list to fill out a comment card and send it to the Directorate of Contracting’s service manager.

QUESTION 35:  WHAT ARE SIC AND NAICS?

ANSWER:  They are the Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) system and North American Industrial Classification System (NAICS).  These are codes that classify types of products or services by industry type.  SIC codes have been replaced with NAICS codes.  Although not required, it will be helpful to you to know the appropriate NAICS codes for the products and services your company has available when accessing most of the websites referenced in this Guide.  Procurement notices and solicitation documents normally always include a NAICS, and it may save you time in discerning what work may be of interest to your company.  You can review the NAICS and obtain additional information about NAICS by accessing http://www.census.gov/epcd/www/naics.html. 

QUESTION 36:  I UNDERSTAND THAT THERE IS A NEW ON-LINE REQUIREMENT TO SUBMIT VENDOR REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN ORDER TO BE ELIGIBLE FOR CONTRACT AWARD.  HOW DO I COMPLY?

ANSWER:  ORCA (Online Representations and Certifications Application) is a web-based system that centralizes the collection and distribution of vendor representations and certifications of business information required for contract award.  Offerors are required to provide representations and certifications electronically via https://orca.bpn.gov in conjunction with the required registration in CCR.  Representations and certifications need to be updated as necessary, but require an annual update as a minimum.  Contracting officials have replaced affected solicitation provisions with directions for vendors to complete ORCA.  NOTE:  The vendor must be active in CCR prior to registration in ORCA, and CCR MPIN (Marketing Partner Identification Number) from CCR (a requirement to use ORCA) takes 24 to 48 hours to become activated in ORCA after CCR registration.  Therefore, it is critical that vendors interested in doing business with Fort Drum and other Government agencies complete their CCR registration and ORCA requirements in sufficient time to meet solicitation representation and certification requirements. 
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QUESTION 37:  I HAVE HEARD THAT THE SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION (SBA) HAS A DATABASE CALLED “PRO-NET”.  WHAT IS IT AND HOW DO I ACCESS IT?

ANSWER:  It is an electronic search engine for information on small, disadvantaged, 8(a), HUBZone, women-owned, service disabled veteran, and veteran owned small businesses.  Recently this database was integrated with Central Contractor Registration (CCR) to simplify the process for small businesses to register for SBA’s procurement preference programs.  This means that CCR assumed all of PRO-Net’s search capabilities and functions.  Small businesses no longer need to manually register in PRO-Net, just register in CCR.  Go to http://www.ccr.gov, click on “Dynamic Small Business Search”.

QUESTION 38:  WHAT IS “SUB-NET”?  HOW DO I ACCESS IT?

ANSWER:  Prime contractors use SUB-Net to post subcontracting opportunities.  These may or may not be reserved for small business, and they may include either solicitations or other notices – for example, notices of sources sought for teaming partners and subcontractors on future contracts.  Small businesses can view this website to identify opportunities in their areas of expertise.  SUB-Net is available at http://web.sba.gov/subnet.

QUESTION 39:  WHAT IS THE HUBZONE EMPOWERMENT CONTRACTING PROGRAM?

[image: image14.wmf] 

ANSWER:  It is an initiative designed to stimulate economic development by providing federal contracting opportunities to small businesses located in eligible areas.  A HUBZone is a “historically” underutilized business zone.  It is a “place-based” federal contracting program serving new market communities with low income or high unemployment.  The program provides both prime contract and subcontract benefits.  Companies must be certified by the Small Business Administration (SBA) to participate in the program.  At the HUBZone website (http://www.sba.gov/hubzone), you can quickly determine whether your firm is located in a qualified HUBZone, and you can apply for participation in this program.

QUESTION 40:  WHAT IS THE 8(a) BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM?  HOW CAN I GET INVOLVED?

ANSWER:  Section 8(a) of the Small Business Act established a program that authorizes the Small Business Administration (SBA) to enter into all types of contracts with other agencies and to choose subcontractors eligible for program participation to perform the contracts.  The SBA’s subcontractors are referred to as 
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“8(a) contractors” (who are small disadvantaged businesses).  Selecting businesses for the 8(a) Business Development Program is the responsibility of the SBA.  In order for your business to participate in the 8(a) Business Development Program you must contact your regional SBA Office at http://www.sba.gov or go to the Section 8(a) Business Development Program website at http://www.sba.gov/8abd.  

QUESTION 41:  WHAT IS THE SERVICE-DISABLED VETERAN-OWNED SMALL BUSINESS (SDVOSB) PROCUREMENT PROGRAM?

ANSWER:  The Veterans Benefit Act of 2003 created the procurement program for small business concerns owned and controlled by service-disabled veterans to provide Federal contracting assistance to service-disabled veteran-owned small businesses.  The contracting officer may set-aside acquisitions for competition restricted to SDVOSB concerns and can also consider SDVOSB sole source awards.  For more information on this program, you are encouraged to visit the SBA’s website at http://www.sba/gov/vets or Department of Defense Office of Small and Disadvantaged Business Utilization at http://www.acq.osd.mil/sadbu.

QUESTION 42:  WHAT IS THE SMALL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CENTER (SBDC) PROGRAM?

[image: image15.png]



ANSWER:  The Small Business Administration administers the Small Business Development Center Program to provide management assistance to current and prospective small business owners.  SBDCs offer one-stop assistance to small businesses by providing a wide variety of information and guidance in easily accessible branch locations.  SBDC assistance is tailored to the local community 

and the needs of the individual clients.  This program is designed to deliver up-to-date counseling, training, and technical assistance in all aspects of small business management.  SBDC services include, but are not limited to, assisting small businesses with financial, marketing, production, organization, engineering, and technical problems and feasibility studies.  To locate the Small Business Development Center in your area, go to http://www.sba.gov/sbdc.  The Small Business Development Center that is nearest to Fort Drum is located at Jefferson Community College, Coffeen Street, Watertown, NY; telephone 315-782-9262; fax 315-782-0901.
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QUESTION 43:  IF I RECEIVE A CONTRACT AT FORT DRUM, WILL I HAVE TO PAY MY EMPLOYEES “FEDERAL” WAGE RATES?

ANSWER:  In accordance with the Service Contract Act, government agencies must include wage determinations in every service contract that exceeds $2,500 (but there are some exceptions).  In accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act, government agencies must include wage determinations in every construction contract that exceeds $2,000.  The contractor (and subcontractor) is required by law to pay these wages and all associated fringe benefits, as a minimum, to any of his employees who perform work under the contract.  The appropriate wage determinations are included in the government agency’s solicitation and resulting contract and are effective for the locality in which the service or construction is to be performed.  More information can be obtained at:  U.S. Department of Labor’s website http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/contracts/sca.htm for Service Contract Act; U.S. Department of Labor’s website http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/contracts/dbra.htm for Davis-Bacon Act; and Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) Part 22 (http://www.arnet.gov/far).  

QUESTION 44:  WHAT IS THE FEDERAL CONTRACTOR PROGRAM?

ANSWER:  Under Title 38 of the U.S. Code, any contractor or subcontractor with a contract of $25,000 or more with the Federal Government must take affirmative action to hire and promote qualified Special Disabled Veterans, Veterans of the Vietnam-era and any other Veterans who served on active duty during a war or in a campaign or expedition for which a campaign badge has been authorized.

QUESTION 45:  WHAT DO I NEED TO DO TO COMPLY WITH THE FEDERAL CONTRACTOR PROGRAM?

ANSWER:  If you are a contractor or subcontractor with a contract of $25,000 or more and have openings for jobs other than top management positions, you must list them with the nearest State Employment Service office.  For vacancies on Fort Drum, job openings may be listed with the New York State Department of Labor at 317 Washington Street, Watertown, NY by calling 315-785-2223 or 315-785-2369.  You must also register in the VETS-100 program at http://www.vets100.com and you must file VETS-100 Report annually.

QUESTION 46:  WHAT HAPPENS AFTER A JOB IS LISTED WITH THE STATE EMPLOYMENT SERVICE?

ANSWER:  Department of Labor Veterans Representatives search for qualified veterans (including Special Disabled Veterans, Vietnam-era Veterans, and any other Veterans who served on active during a war or campaign or expedition for which a campaign badge has been authorized) who have exactly the skills and experience the contractor specifies.  These veterans are referred to the contractor per the contractor’s referral instructions.  Contractors are not required to hire those who are referred but must have affirmative action plans.

QUESTION 47:  WHAT ARE THE ADVANTAGES OF LISTING MY JOBS WITH THE NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR?

ANSWER:  Listing jobs with the New York State Department of Labor can help you meet your affirmative action and equal employment opportunity obligations.  You also have trained professionals at the Department of Labor working for you to find workers with exactly the skills you need.  There is no charge for listing a job opening with the Department of Labor.

QUESTION 48:  WHERE CAN I GET FURTHER INFORMATION REGARDING THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE FEDERAL CONTRACTOR PROGRAM?

ANSWER:  For other requirements, including the VETS-100 Report, and for a complete description of the Federal Contractor Program, visit the U.S. Department of Labor website at http://www.dol.gov/vets/contractor or call the Veterans Representative at the New York State Department of Labor in Watertown at 315-785-2223 or 315-785-2369.

QUESTION 49:  WHAT IS THE CONTRACT MANPOWER REPORTING APPLLICATION (CMRA)?

ANSWER:  The Contractor Manpower Reporting Application (CMRA) is a business process that has been approved by the Secretary of the Army as a means for collecting information on contracts that provide services to the Department of the Army.  An updated CMRA business process, Version 3.0, has been implemented starting with the reporting of Fiscal Year (FY) 2006 information.  The basis for and guidance on reporting FY 2006 information via Version 3.0 can be found on https://cmra.army.mil under the “User Guide” link.  The information to be collected includes, by contract, delivery order/task order number, the funding source and related financial data, organization receiving the services, mission/function performed, and labor hours and costs by Government Fiscal Year (1 October through 30 September).  CMRA will enable the Army to (1) fully understand the composition of the Army workforce-military, civilian, and contractor, and allow for more informed workforce staffing and funding decisions; (2) provide better oversight of our workforce, avoid duplication of effort, or shifting of in-house reductions to contract; and (3) better account for and explain our total Army workforce.  Any contractor who has a contract for providing services to the U.S. Army must register and report his required information at the CMRA website each fiscal year.
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QUESTION 50:  AFTER I HAVE DELIVERED THE SUPPLIES OR PERFORMED THE SERVICES UNDER MY CONTRACT, HOW SOON MAY I EXPECT PAYMENT?

[image: image16.png]


ANSWER:  All contract payments are processed in accordance with the Prompt Payment Act within a specified number of days.  Progress payments for construction contracts are to be made 14 days from the receipt of a proper invoice at the “invoice to” address on your contract.  Service and supply contract payments and final payments for construction contracts are to be made 30 days from receipt of a proper invoice or date of acceptance by the Government, whichever is later.  A “proper invoice” is defined as one that contains the name and address of contractor, the contract line item that is being invoiced and a description of the supplies/services, an invoice number, the date the invoice is prepared, unit price, total price, contract number, and delivery order number if applicable.  Payments processed through Defense Finance & Accounting Service (DFAS are paid on the exact day they are due or after.  Late payments receive interest at the current treasury rate.  All payments from the Federal Government will be made by electronic funds transfer (EFT).  (NOTE:  These procedures do not apply to purchases made with the Government payment (credit) card.  If your contract is being paid with the Government payment card, you must still submit a “proper invoice”; however, your payment will normally be processed in a much shorter period of time.)

QUESTION 51:  WHERE DO I SUBMIT MY INVOICES FOR PAYMENT?

ANSWER:  Your contract will designate a payment and invoicing address.  You must submit invoices in accordance with the terms and conditions of your contract.  Questions concerning invoices may be addressed at any time to the point of contact designated in your contract.

QUESTION 52:  HOW DO I INVOICE FOR PAYMENT BY THE GOVERNMENT PAYMENT CARD?

ANSWER:  You may either fax or mail your invoice directly to the paying office designated in your contract.  You must ensure that you submit a “proper invoice” (see Question 50 above).  

QUESTION 53:  HOW DO I INQUIRE ABOUT PAYMENTS MADE BY DIRECTORATE OF CONTRACTING WITH THE PAYMENT/CREDIT CARD?

ANSWER:  For inquiries on contract payments (over $2,500) to be made with the Government payment (credit) card, call (315) 772-6514.
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QUESTION 54:  HOW DO I INVOICE FOR PAYMENT TO DEFENSE FINANCE & ACCOUNTING SERVICE (DFAS)?

[image: image17.png]


ANSWER:  If the designated paying office and designated billing (invoicing) office stated in your contract is Defense Finance and Accounting Service (DFAS) you must electronically submit your invoice.  DFAS is enabled to accept invoices electronically through the following means:  (1) Wide Area Work Flow (WAWF), (2) Web Invoicing System (WINS), and (3) American National Standards Institute (ANSI) X.12 Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) formats.  It is recommended that you utilize Wide Area Work Flow (WAWF).  WAWF is a web-based system that enables vendors and receiving activities to electronically submit invoices and receiving reports to DFAS for payment.  WAWF is the system Fort Drum will be using to input the receiving information.  At this time, please submit your invoice using the "invoice only" format due to the fact Fort Drum does not have WAWF receiving information capability but will have soon.   For more information about WAWF go to https://wawf.eb.mil or contact Antoinette Durden at DFAS-Orlando, phone 407-646-4254 or email antoinette.e.durden@dfas.mil.

QUESTION 55:  HOW CAN I INQUIRE ABOUT MY PAYMENT FROM DFAS?

ANSWER:  If you have a question regarding a payment that is past due or made more than 30 days ago, contact Army Vendor Pay Branch (see Appendix A)   You may also make a payment inquiry through their website at https://myinvoice.csd.disa.mil.  DFAS is required to respond to your inquiry within 24 hours.  If you have comments (good or bad) regarding DFAS, you may access the following link and fill out an ICE comment card at  http://ice.disa.mil/index.cfm?fa=card&site_id=302&service_provider_id=86319
QUESTION 56:  IF I AM A SUBCONTRACTOR OR SUPPLIER FOR A CONTRACTOR WHO IS WORKING ON A FORT DRUM PROJECT AWARDED BY THE DIRECTORATE OF CONTRACTING AND THE CONTRACTOR FAILS TO PAY ME FOR MY SUPPLIES/SERVICES, WHAT SHOULD I DO TO OBTAIN PAYMENT?

ANSWER:  First, you should contact the contractor to request payment.  If this fails, you may contact the Directorate of Contracting at (315) 772-5443 for assistance in obtaining payment.  You should have available the prime contractor’s name, address, telephone number and Government contract number.
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QUESTION 57:  HOW WOULD A VENDOR KNOW IF A REQUESTED ITEM IS AUTHORIZED FOR PURCHASE BY FORT DRUM?

ANSWER:  The Directorate of Contracting uses several methods for simplified purchases (those under $100,000) and only certain individuals are authorized to purchase items for the Government.  Whenever someone calls or writes to order an item, it is always your responsibility to ensure that the person has the authority to buy items for the Government.  There are two things you can do to obtain verification that the purchase is authorized:  (1) ask for a purchase order number (it will always begin with W911S2); or (2) ask for his/her Government VISA purchase (credit) card number.  If the individual who contacted you cannot provide either one of the above, you MUST refuse to honor the order.  If there is any doubt, contact this office immediately prior to processing the “order”.

QUESTION 58:  WHAT HAPPENS IF I DO HONOR AN UNAUTHORIZED PURCHASE?

[image: image18.wmf]ANSWER:  Normally, it takes several months for an unauthorized commitment (purchase) to come to the attention of the Directorate of Contracting.  Once this office is notified, we will initiate a “ratification” process whereby the Government takes steps to pay the vendor’s claim.  You will be asked to provide proof of purchase, delivery, and information on why you accepted the order.  Once the ratification process has begun, it can take 3 months or more to receive payment of your claim.  Our best advice to every vendor is to verify the authority of the individual who is placing the order with your company (ask for a purchase order or purchase (credit) card number), thereby avoiding a lengthy ratification process.

QUESTION 59:  WHAT ARE “REQUIRED SOURCES” OF SUPPLY/SERVICES?

ANSWER:  Federal agencies are required to satisfy requirements for supplies or services from or through certain sources.  They are listed below in descending order of priority:

     Supplies:  Agency inventories, excess from other agencies, Federal Prison Industries, supplies which are on the Procurement List maintained by the Committee for Purchase from People Who Are Blilnd or Severely Disabled, wholesale supply sources (such as GSA), mandatory Federal Supply Schedules, option use Federal Supply Schedules, commercial sources

     Services:  Services which are on the Procurement List maintained by the Committee for Purchase from People Who Are Blilnd or Severely Disabled, mandatory Federal Supply Schedules, optional use Federal Supply Schedules, Federal Prison Industries or commercial sources

This means that whenever a supply or service requirement is submitted to the Contracting Office for procurement, we must research the “priority” sources first before soliciting commercial businesses.
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QUESTION 60:  WHAT IS “PARTNERING”?

[image: image19.wmf]ANSWER:  Partnering is a unique method of Alternate Disputes Resolution (ADR) in that it is the only technique that focuses on dispute avoidance.  It is strictly voluntary and is outside the contract terms and conditions.  It works best on long-term construction and/or service contracts; however, partnering can be accomplished to some degree on most contracts.  Partnering can be formal or informal and can begin in the solicitation phase or be initiated after the contract award.  Ultimately, it establishes a relationship between the parties to work out their problems as they arise during contract performance and develops positive and mutually beneficial relationships by creating a climate characterized by trust and cooperation

QUESTION 61:  DO CONTRACTORS RECEIVE A PERFORMANCE EVALUATION?  

ANSWER:   Yes, a performance evaluation is conducted for the majority of our contracts.  Please note that the rated performance elements and sub-elements for construction and for services are different.  

QUESTION 62:  WHAT PERFORMANCE ELEMENTS OF THE CONTRACT ARE RATED?

ANSWER:  Rated performance elements for construction and service contracts are shown below:

CONSTRUCTION:  The rated performance elements and sub-elements are:

· Quality control

· Quality of workmanship

· Adequacy of quality control plan

· Adequacy of materials

· Adequacy of submittals

[image: image20.wmf]
· Effectiveness of management

· Cooperation and responsiveness

· Management of personnel/resources

· Coordination and control of subcontractors

· Adequacy of site clean-up

· Effectiveness of job-site supervision

· Timely performance

· Adequacy of initial progress schedule

· Adherence to approved schedule

· Resolution of delays

· Completion of punch list items
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· Compliance with labor standards

· Correction of noted deficiencies

· Payrolls properly completed and submitted

· Compliance with safety standards

· Adequacy of safety plan

· Correction of noted deficiencies

SERVICES:  The rated performance elements are:

· Quality of product/service

· Schedule/timeliness of performance 

· Management of key personnel

· Business relations



· Other/customer service (end user)

QUESTION 63:  WHAT ARE THE RATING CRITERIA?

ANSWER:  Ratings are the same for construction and service contracts.  To determine a contractor’s overall evaluation score, we compute the mean score of those applicable elements that were rated.

· Exceptional/Outstanding:  Performance meets all contractual requirements and exceeded many to the Government’s benefit.  Work accomplished with few minor problems for which corrective actions were highly effective.  Responses to inquiries and technical/service/administrative issues were effective and timely.  Assign numerical rating of 4.

· Very Good/Above Average:  Performance meets contractual requirements and exceeds some to the Government’s benefit.  There may have been some minor problems for which corrective actions were effective.  Quality problems, cost issues and/or delays did not impact achievement of contract requirements.  Responses to inquiries and technical/service/      administrative issues were usually effective and timely.  Assign numerical rating of 3.

· Satisfactory:  Performance meets contractual requirements.  Corrective actions appeared to be or were effective.  Quality problems, cost issues, and/or delays required minor agency resources to ensure achievement of contract requirements.  Responses to inquiries and technical/service/administrative issues were somewhat less effective and timely.  Assign numerical rating of 2.
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· Marginal:  Performance did not meet some contractual requirements.  There were serious problems for which no corrective actions were identified.  Contractor’s proposed actions appeared only marginally effective or were not fully implemented.  Quality problems, cost issues and/or delays required major agency resources to ensure achievement of contract requirements, despite use of Agency resources.  Responses to inquiries and technical/

service/administrative issues were marginally effective and timely.  Assign numerical rating of 1.

· Unsatisfactory:  Performance did not meet most contractual requirements.  Serious problems exist for which corrective actions were ineffective.  Quality non-conformances, cost issues, and/or delays compromised the achievement of contract requirements, despite use of agency resources.  Responses to inquiries and technical/service/administrative issues were neither effective nor timely.  Assign numerical rating of 0.

· Not Applicable:  This element did not apply to this project.  No need to rate/no numerical rating.

· Numerical Ratings:

3.6 to 4.0
Exceptional/Outstanding

3.0 to 3.5
Very Good/Above Average

2.0 to 2.9
Satisfactory

1.0 to 1.9
Marginal

0.0 to 0.9
Unsatisfactory
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APPENDIX A

REFERENCE LIST FOR VARIOUS AGENCIES 

(FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL)

	AGENCY
	WEBSITE

	FEDERAL
	

	ACA-NR Directorate of Contracting Fort Drum (click on “Business/Contracting”)
	http://www.drum.army.mil

	U.S. Small Business Administration
	http:/www.sba.gov

	Procurement Technical Assistance Center (Rochester)
	http://www.rochesterptac.com

	Central Contractor Registration
	http://www.ccr.gov

	North American Industry Classification System
	http://www.census/gov/epcd/www/naicstab.html
http://www.ba.gov/size/indexsize.html

	SBA’s Subcontracting Network
	http://web.sba.gov/subnet

	SBA’s HUBZone search/registration
	http://www.sba.gov/hubzone

	SBA’s Website for Veteran Preference Programs
	http://www.sba.gov/vets

	SBA’s Website for 8(a) Program
	http://www.sba.gov/8abd

	SBA’s Directory of Procurement Center Representatives
	http://www.sba.gov/gc/pcr.html

	Department of Defense Office of Small and Disadvantaged Business Utilization (SADBU)
	http://www.acq.osd.mil/sadbu

	SADBU Site for NASA
	http://www.hq.nasa.gov/office/codek

	SADBU Site for U.S. Army
	http://www.sellingtoarmy.info

	SADBU Site for U.S. Navy
	http://www.hq.navy.mil/sadbu

	Business Partner Network (BPN)
	http://www.bpn.gov

	Defense Finance & Accounting Service’s Vendor Pay System
	https://myinvoice.csd.disa.mil

	Army Single Face to Industry (ASFI)
	https://acquisition.army.mil/asfi

	Federal Business Opportunities
	http://www.fedbizopps.gov

	Army Contracting Agency (ACA)
	http://aca.saalt.army.mil/ACA/index.htm

	Department of Commerce
	http://www.commerce.gov/contracts.html

	Department of Labor
	http://www.dol.gov

	U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
	http://www.hq.usace.army.mil/hqsb

	U.S. Postal Service
	http://www.usps.com/purchasing

	Department of Treasury
	http://ustreas.gov/offices/management/dcfo/osbdu/how-to

	Department of Energy
	http://e-center.doe.gov

	Environmental Protection Agency
	http://www.epa.gov/oam

	Federal Aviation Administration
	http://asu.faa.gov/business/Doing.cfm

	National Institute of Health
	http://www.nih.gov/about/smallbusiness.htm

	Defense Commissary Agency
	http://www.commisssaries.com/business.cfm

	Defense Logistics Agency
	http://www.dla.mil/bussOppsMain.asp

	Department of Homeland Security
	http://www.dhs.gov/xopnbiz

	Department of Veterans Affairs
	http://www.va.gov/osdbu

	Transportation Security Administration
	http://www.tsa.gov/join/index.shtm

	Army & Air Force Exchange Services
	http://www.aafes.com/pa/selling/index.html

	Army Morale, Welfare & Recreation Contracting
	http://www.armymwr.org/home

	Navy Morale, Welfare & Recreation Contracting
	http://www.mwr.navy.mil/mwrprgms/facacq.htm

	General Services Administration

    Schedule Sales Query
	http://www.gsa.gov
http://ssq.gsa.gov

	U.S. Army Communications & Electronics Command
	http://www.sadbu.cecom.army.mil/sadbu

	U.S. Army Space & Missile Defense Command
	http://www.smdc.army.mil/Contracts/Contracts.html

	U.S. Army Tank-Automotive & Armaments Command
	http://contracting.tacom.army.mil

	U.S. Army Medical Command
	http://www.armymedicine.army.mil/about/business.html

	APPENDIX A (cont’d)

REFERENCE LIST FOR VARIOUS AGENCIES 

(FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL)

	Natinal Guard Bureau
	http://www.arng.army.mil/tools/contracting

	Government Printing Office
	http://www.gpo.gov

	Internal Revenue Service
	http://www.irs.gov

	Occupational Health & Safety Administration (OSHA)
	http://www.osha.gov

	Federal Acquisition Regulation
	http://www.arnet.gov/far

	Defense Acquisition Regulations Directorate
	http://www.acq.osd.mil/dpap

	Online Representations & Certifications
	https://orca.bpn.gov

	Federal Supply Service
	http://www.fss.gsa.gov

	Federal Procurement Data System (past information on government purchasing)
	https://www.fpds.gov

	Links to Government agency websites
	http://www.firstgov.gov

	Site for Women-Owned Businesses
	http://www.womenbiz.gov

	Gateway for Businesses Selling to Federal Government
	http://www.business.gov

	Newsletters and Opportunities
	http://www.fedmarket.com
http://www.govcon.com
http://www.arnet.gov

	NEW YORK STATE
	

	NYS Department of Transportation
	https://www.nysdot.gov/portal/page/portal/main/business-center

	NYS Thruway Authority
	http://www.thruway.state.ny.us/business/index.html

	Dormitory Authority of NYS
	http://www.dasny.org

	Empire State Development
	http://www.empire.state.ny.us/default.asp

	NYS Small Business Development Center
	http://www.nyssbdc.org

	NYS Department of Labor
	http://www.labor.state.ny.us

	NYS Department of State
	http://www.dos.state.ny.us

	NYS Department of Taxation and Finance
	http://www.tax.state.ny.us

	NYS Office of General Services
	http://www.ogs.state.ny.us

	NYS Contract Reporter
	http://www.nyscr.org

	MISCELLANEOUS
	

	Actus Lend Lease (Fort Drum housing project)
	http://www.fortdrummch.com

	Fort Drum Regional Liaison Organization
	http://www.fdrlo.org

	Dun & Bradstreet
	http://www.dnb.com/us

	Self Service Supply Centers/LC Industries
	http://www.buylci.com

	SCORE
	http://www.score.org

	IMPORTANT ADDRESSES & PHONE NUMBERS
	

	ACA-NR Directorate of Contracting


	45 West Street, Fort Drum, NY  13602-5220

Phone:  315-772-6508/6514

Fax:  315-772-7473

email:  carol.romeo@conus.army.mil

	Army Contracting Agency (ACA), Northern Region

(Industry Guide to Regional Contracting Centers and Installations)
	Small Business Program Office, ATTN:  SFCA-NR/SB, 11 Bernard Road, Fort Monroe, VA  23651-1001

Phone:  757-788-3293

Website:  www.aca-nrhq.army.mil/SADBU/INDUSGU2.doc

	Defense Finance & Accounting Service-Indianapolis

 
	DFAS Indianapolis, Department 3800, 8899 East 56th Street, Indianapolis, IN  46249-3800

Phone:  1-888-332-7366

Fax:  1-877-701-5069

	Defense Finance & Accounting Service-Orlando
	DFAS Orlando, PO Box 924400, Orlando, FL  32893-4400

Phone:  1-800-756-4571 (Option 2, Option 1)

Fax:  1-866-572-4162

	APPENDIX A (cont’d)

REFERENCE LIST FOR VARIOUS AGENCIES 

(FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL)

	Defense Finance & Accounting Service-Rome
	DFAS Rome, 325 Brooks Road, Rome, NY  13441-4527

Phone:  1-800-533-0527

Fax:  1-877-575-3332

	Actus Lend Lease (Fort Drum Mountain Community Homes)
	PO Box 189, Black River, NY  13612

315-955-6010



	Central Contractor Registration Assistance Center


	74 Washington Street, Suite 7, Battle Creek, MI  49017-3084

Phone:  1-888-227-2423 or 269-961-7766

Fax:  269-961-7243/5305

	Dun & Bradstreet
	Phone:  1-866-705-5711 or 610-882-7000

	Fort Drum Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Officer


	Directorate of Humana Resources, ATTN:  FOIA Officer, 10720 Mount Belvedere Blvd., Fort Drum, NY  13602

Phone:  315-772-1500

Fax:  315-772-6200

	Defense Commissary Agency

   Headquarters (Fort Lee, VA)

   Fort Drum Commissary
	Phone:  804-734-9947

Phone:  315-772-6559

	Cadence Contract Services
	PO Box 79, Black River, NY  13612

Phone:  315-775-9926

	Lawman Heating & Cooling
	PO Box 599, Sackets Harbor, NY  13685

Phone:  315-646-2919

	Purcell Construction
	566 Coffeen Street, Watertown, NY  13601

Phone:  315-782-1050

	Omega QSE
	6505 Collamer Road, East Syracuse, NY  13057

Phone:  315-775-1000

	North Operations & Maintenance
	PO Box 50, Watertown, NY  13601

Phone:  315-772-6310

	Alutiiq Global Solutions, LLC

Point of Contact:  Steve Yost
	3033 S. Parker Road, Suite 1111, Aurora, CO  80014

Phone:  256-489-3332

Fax:  256-489-3317

	Chugach Industries, Inc.

Point of Contact:  Stanley Gilmore
	560 East 34th Avenue, Anchorage, AK  99503

Phone:  702-277-6428

Fax:  702-795-2049

	U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Fort Drum Resident Office)

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers  (Associate Director of Small & Disadvantaged Business Utilization)
	Bldg. 4895, Fort Drum, NY  13602

Phone:  315-772-6313

Fax:  315-772-5834

GAO Building, 3rd Floor, Room 3A60, 441 G Street, NW, Washington, DC  20314-1000

Phone:  202-761-8789

Fax:  202-761-4609

Email:  judith.w.blake@usace.army.mil
Website:  www.hq.usace.army.mil/hqsb

	Army NAF Procurement (MWR)

    Headquarters, Fort McNair

     Fort Drum
	NERO NAF Contracting Office, 101 Bloxon Street, Bldg. 205, Room 213, Fort Myer, VA  22211

Phone:  703-696-7129  
Email:  chan.k.kim@fmmc.army.mil
Phone:  315-772-7668 (email: cindy.fleming@conus.army.mil)

	U.S. Army Medical Department Activity (Fort Drum)

U.S. Army Medical Command (MEDCOM) Associate Director of Small & Disadvantaged Business Utilization
	Bldg. P11050A, Fort Drum, NY  13602

Phone:  315-772-4797/4019

2107 17th Street, Suite 70, Fort Sam Houston, TX  78234-5070

Phone:  210-221-4267

Fax:  210-221-4126

Email:  dan.shackelford@cen.amedd.army.mil
Website:  http://sb.amedd.army.mil

	U.S. Army Dental Activity (Fort Drum)
	Bldg. P10205, Fort Drum, NY  13602

Phone:  315-772-4343

Email:  mitchell.stewart@drum.army.mil

	Army & Air Force Exchange Service (Fort Drum)
	Post Exchange, Bldg. P2300, Fort Drum, NY  13602

Phone:  315-772-6210

	Rochester Procurement Technical Assistance Center
	150 State Street, 4th Floor, Rochester, NY  14614

Phone:  585-256-4620

Email:  paulette.birch@RBAlliance.com

	LC Industries

    Headquarters (Durham, NC)

    Fort Drum
	PO Box 13629, ATTN:  Bill Blackton, Durham, NC  27709

Phone:  919-596-8277

Phone:  315-773-3121

Email:  bblackton@lcibsc.com
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APPENDIX  B

HOW TO DOWNLOAD SOLICITATIONS FROM THE INTERNET

· Log onto our Homepage at http://www.drum.army.mil and click on Business/Contracting.  This will take you to DOC’s Homepage.

· Scroll down to the table and click on Solicitations.  Then scroll down to the bottom and select either “Construction Solicitations” or “Service/Supply Solicitations”.  

· Look for solicitation number that you want.  If it says “AVAILABLE NOW”, you will be able to view and download the solicitation.

· Click in the “SOLICITATION #” column of the solicitation that interests you.

· NOTE: Adobe Acrobat Reader must be installed on your system to view these files.  It can be downloaded free of charge at http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.html (select Windows version, click “continue”, then click “download”)

· All sections of the solicitation will have to be downloaded separately to obtain the complete solicitation.

· Click on the title in the “section” column for the section of the solicitation you wish to view/download.  When the Word document opens, click “File”, “Save As” and save wherever you choose -OR- send to the printer to obtain a hard copy.

· Follow this procedure to download DRAWINGS:

· Once you are in the Construction Solicitations page, you must download the Maxview software to view the drawings.  

· Choose the Maxview software link

· A “file download” window will appear.  Choose “save”.

· A “save as” folder will appear.  You must save the Maxview file in a location such as “Temp” or “My Documents” and remember where you saved it.

· Go to the location you saved the Maxview file.

· Double click on it, bringing up the Maxview Setup window.  Click “OK”.

· Unzip to folder c:\windows\program files.

· Wizard will appear.  Just keep clicking “next”.  When the word window appears, just close it out.

· When the wizard window comes to “finish”, click on it.

· This should complete the Maxview download portion.
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· Go to the solicitation you wish to download and click on it.  Then choose “drawings”.

· A “file download” window will appear.  Choose “save”.

· A “save as” window will appear.  Save in a location such as “Temp” or “My Documents” and remember file name and location you saved to.  The file should appear as a .zip file.

· Click “save”.  The file should go to your specified location and the solicitation will be left up.

· Minimize the Internet, go back to where file is saved, and click on the file.  (It should look like a file cabinet with a clamp.) 

· A WinZip window will appear.  (NOTE:  You must be in WinZip Classic not WinZip Wizard to view.)  Just click “I agree”.

· An Unregistered WinZip window will appear.  At the top, choose “Actions”.  A drop down menu will appear.  Choose “Select All”.  All of the drawings should be selected.  Choose “Actions” again, then choose “Extract”. 

· Extract the files to a location such as “Temp” or “My Documents”.

· Once the files extracted, go to the location you extracted them to.  They will appear as sheets of paper with “.cal” names attached to them.

· Choose the one with the project name, such as “replace bridge”.  This will bring all of the drawings up in Maxview

· NOTE:  It is your responsibility to get the drawings to scale.

For assistance, please call the Directorate of Contracting at 315-772-5441. 
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APPENDIX C

SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION (SBA)

NOTE:  The Directorate of Contracting strongly encourages any small business (whether or not you are a current Government contractor) to visit the SBA’s website at www.sba.gov/businessop.  It is an excellent resource tool.  Look at some of the information they offer!

THE BASICS

· Defining the Market

· How the Government Buys

· Contractor Responsibilities

· Identifying Your Business

· Subcontracting Opportunities

· Procurement Goaling

· Free Online Training

UNDERSTANDING THE RULES

· Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR)

· FAR Frequently Asked Questions

· Procurement Policy

· Best Practices

FINDING OPPORTUNITIES

· Define Your Products/Services
· Identify Agency Needs
· Buying Sources (Agencies)
· Matchmaking
SIZE STANDARDS

· What is a Small Business?

· Guide to Size Standards

· North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) Definitions

· Frequently Asked Questions about Size Standards

· Table of Size Standards

MARKETING YOUR BUSINESS

· Register Your Company (Central Contractor Registration, SUB-Net)

· Find Contracting Opportunities (FedBizOpps)

· Federal Supply Schedules

· SBA Assistance

· Specific Training
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CONTRACT PROPOSALS

· Preparing the Bid

· SBA Assistance

· Unsuccessful Proposals

In addition, the SBA administers the Small Business Development Center (SBDC) Program to provide management assistance to current and prospective small business owners.  The Small Business Development Center (SBDC) in the Fort Drum area is located at Jefferson Community College, Watertown, NY.  Here are some of the things they can do for you!

· Provide up-to-date counseling

· Provide training and technical assistance in all aspects of small business management

· Assist with financial, marketing, production, organization, engineering and technical problems and feasibility studies

· Provide special SBDC programs and economic development activities to include international trade assistance, technical assistance, procurement assistance, venture capital formation, and rural development

· Provide special efforts to reach minority members of socially and economically disadvantaged groups, veterans, women, and the disabled

· Assist both current and potential small business owners

· Assist small businesses applying for Small Business Innovation and Research (SBIR) grants from federal agencies
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